

^B
B. Volume. I.

141

Manners. Morals.

Grossness.

Specimens of Songs Sung about the Streets of
London.

Volume .1.

B.

142

N^o 2

Songs, within memory

143

Introduction

Specimens of Songs and parts of Songs,
(from memory) sung about the streets within my recollection,
and without molestation.

Every one of the songs mentioned might be
bought of the thine who sold ballads in the streets against
the walls, each song for a halfpenny.

The Bishop of London in 1750 in his letter to the
Clergy and People of London and Westminster on the late Parliaments
Songs. "The infamous and obscene songs and ballads that are daily
sung in our public streets, to the great uneasiness of all modest
virtuous persons who are passing by; to the great corruption and
depravation of our servants and children, and to the total
discouragement of virtue among the common people in general."

Lady May. May - 1750 - p. 174.

The Songs that are defective were all known to me
when I was an apprentice boy - but forgotten past recollection.

Those made perfect have been so made from the recollection
of old fellows whom I have known

Songs.

The following songs and specimens of songs, are all of them from, ballads, bawled ~~and~~ ^{hung} about the streets, and ~~and~~ ^{hung} against the walls. It will seem incredible that such songs should be allowed but it was so. There is not one of them. Had I have not myself heard sung in the streets, as well as at Choir Clubs, ^{Cock & Hen Clubs & Five & Easy's.} every one of them ~~were~~ ^{were} recollect^{ed} by ^{most of them by} Mr. Nixie, and Mr. Hayward, and some lines or passages have been added by ~~them~~ ^{these persons}. It must not be supposed that they were sung only in the places which I have mentioned, they were sung in all parts of the town. There were probably a hundred ballad singers then, for one now.

The ~~same~~ causes of their being discontinued to be sung are various among them, a more active Police. The Society of Abolitionists against republicans and levellers also contributed to this end, John Reeves and his associates, together with the magistrates, extinguished them. The abolitionists printed a large number of what they called ~~the~~ Loyal songs, and gave them to the ballad singers; if any one was found singing any but loyal songs, he or she was carried before a magistrate who ^{and his wife} admonished him or her, and they were then told they might have loyal songs for nothing, and that they would not be molested while singing them. Thus the bawdy songs, and those in praise of ^{and getting drunk.} their ~~were~~ ^{were} pushed out of existence. These loyal songs were succeeded by Dildos & Sea Songs, ^{and} ~~as~~ the old blackguard songs were in a few years unknown to the youths

* Mr. Nixie is a Carver & Gilder & in a large way
 * of Musicians in Great Britain
 * Mr. Hayward is an Attorney - living in Fooks Court

5

9

1

146

Specimens of Songs and fragments of
Songs from memory. Songs sung about the Streets.

No. 1.

1

Jack Chance

On Newgate steps Jack Chance was found
and bred up near St Giles's Round,
My story's true, deny it, who can,
By name, Leering, Billingsgate & Van.
Her bosom beat with joyful joy
When first she beheld the lovely boy,
When home the prize she straight did bring,
and they all allow'd he was just the thing.
just the thing, just the thing, and they
all allow'd he was just the thing.

2

At twelve years old as we are told,
The youth was sturdy, stout and bold,
He'd learn'd to curse, to swear, and fight,
And every thing but read and write,
His dabble ^{clean} ~~swear~~ he'd slip his swum,
In a crowd ^{he'd} ~~grasp~~, ^a ~~clout~~ unswum
and what he got he home would bring
and they all allow'd he was just the thing.

3

But when he grew to man's estate,
His mind did run upon something great
So pad the hoof he seem'd to tramp
So he hired a pride and he went on the scamp.
So staid in the park it was all his pride
With a flaming whore stuck by his side
At Clubs he all flash songs would sing
and they all allow'd he was just the thing.

He stood the matter but that's no matter.
 He gammon'd the twelve ~~from~~ ^{and he} work'den the wider
 Hill. A pardon he got from his gracious ~~king~~ king
 When ~~the~~ overgoring Jack he was just the thing.

5

6
 With Blue ~~Cockade~~ Cockade proclaim'd for war
 With bludgeon stout or Iron bar*
 No head a mole he never would fail
 At getting a Mass House or burning a grave
 Was a victim he fell to his country's laws
 And died at last in religious cause
 No Memory made the blade to swing
 And when tuck'd up he was, just the thing.

just the thing, just the thing
 and when tuck'd up he was just the thing.

This song was made after the execution of the Witches in
 1780. and was sung about the streets with great applause.

* Gangs of Musicians with Iron bars in their hands went from
 house to house demanding money, and no one ventured to
 refuse giving.

N^o. 2.

Howl away.

This was the title (I believe) of a song which I remember was sung by ~~two~~ two women at the end of Swan Yard opposite Ferriss's House in the Strand, every evening. They had two or three others also which were sung in rotation. There was always a considerable crowd of fools idlers, and pick-pockets. ^{to hear them} There were many such groups in different parts of London and in proportion to the volume of the song and the harsh manner of singing, ^{them} was the applause the singers received.

I can recollect only a line or two

My smock's above my knee she did say, she did say

My smock's above my knee she did say.

My smock's above my knee, and you may plainly see

You may have a smack at me, Howl away, Howl away

N^o. 3.

Another begins thus.

Come blowers it's just four o'clock

A time to repair to the Dog and Duck

And if with a call you chance to meet

Howl him down ^{to} Catherine Street

Ho! de ridelle ho! Ho! ho! ra

Ho! ho!, iddle iddle, ri! ho!, ra.

N^o. 4.

Another

The Girls of Three Blue

I cannot remember more than a line

but it equalled in infamy either of the others.

Howl Away. A Guinea to a Crown I will say. I will say

A Guinea to a Crown I will say.

A Guinea to a Crown How I beat you up and down

With my God-Girl in Heaven Howl away Howl away.

N^o. 5

Two women used to sing a song opposite a public house the sign of the Crooked Billet, at the back of St Clements Church in the Strand. It was an open space, between Holywell Street and Wych Street.

The song was a description of a married man who had a lecherous wife, it described his being a hale fellow reduced by her to a skeleton. I can only remember the two last lines.

"And for which I am sure shall go to Hell
For she makes me fuck her in church time."

I remember these words in consequence of the shout which was always set up as the song closed with them.

N^o. 6.

Oh, rare Thorspin Hero, was a great favourite.
Yd Thorspin was hanged at York
in

N^o. 7.

A Caricature on the face of Jack Thom commonly called 16 string Jack was also a favourite. Jack was it seem a great buck in his way, and the first who wore string to the knees of his breeches, he was a notorious thief, as was also Miss Throat his companion. Trade people and other men and women, used to go to Mayriegg Wells of a Sunday afternoon, to see Miss Throat and Jack Thom. The song

The song began thus ^{was popular notwithstanding}
Tharwell ye rocks, farewell ye plains, ^{Jack had been hanged}
No more Miss Throat will as you reign, ^{many years before}
Your sighs and tears are all in vain.
We part but never shall meet again.



2

I wish I was a country girl.
 My cows do milk ^{my} lands do till
 And live I'd never took in hand
 I'd never parted with Jack Man.

148

N^o. 8.

Young Morgan

1
 Young Morgan was a rattling blade
 No lad of better courage.
 Much gold he got on the highway
 Which made him daily flourish.
 Grand Baynes was his lodging then
 Among the flashy leopards.
 He soon became a gentleman
 And left of driving a pos.

* I am not certain that this is the title, and remember only the first verse.

N^o. 9.

There was another juvenile song in praise of a Highwayman of which I remember only two lines.

"My horse and I did like lightning fly
 When we heard the sound of coacher.

Another.

"From the rich I rob, and I do to the poor give."

Sandman Joe.

1
Oh the other day as sand-man Joe, up Holborn Hill was joggling
His raw boned steed it scarce could go, but still the day kept slopping
His raw boned steed, scarce fit for the crows, half-stung to death ^{scarcely}
While Gallows Joe his rump he rub'd and, roaring cried white sand. O.
Why hum you lilly, lilly, lilly, lilly, white sand. O.

2
Scarcely for he's got to sell his some, 'Twas up a neighbouring alley.
When turning of his head about, Oh, he spied his flash girl Sally.
His brawny hands his bubbies press'd, and roaring cried
Why hum you lilly, lilly, lilly, lilly, white sand. O.

3
Whom shall we go said Sal to Joe to get some gin to warm us?
Why, blast ye to Saint Giles' Round, Oh, it's there the Gin worth humours
His brawny hands &c.

4
Oh then they went to play the game, the game, the game will you all know

While Gallows Joe he wag'd his arse, and roaring ~~cried~~ cried
Why, hum you, lilly-lilly-lilly-lilly-lilly-lilly
White sand. O.

This used to procure great shouts of applause for the clac.
The women, who ~~were~~ sang it, managing the last ~~line~~
two lines in a way that may easily be conceived.

Tom the Drover at the Brindled Bull

1119

It was on Easter Monday, Spring time of the year
 Molling Tom the Drover to Smithfield did repair
 His Toys were tight and clever, his dogs were staunch and free
 With a blue birds eye round his squere, and his garter below
 his knees.

~~His tel, ide idde iddes, I, tel-ri tel de~~

~~The blades of the scour were a looking to turn out a young brindle bull
 Turn him back, turn him back, was the token at his tail they began
 Still a knowing yam blown from the garden basket by chance
 Crying, blast you why dont you love him, you'll run him a
 bull without you try~~

~~18.~~

* When a bullock was selected for a hunt, a shout of turn him
 back, turn him back, roaring, and whistling, though the fingers
 placed upon the tongue, were always set up, and performed.

No 10

Another on some Highwayman.

With my pistols in my pocket and a cut-throat in my hand
 So I rode up to the Diligence, and bid the Bug - n Stand.
 To me, He said ye, &c &c &c.

As we rode on Finchley common, the owls were standing there.
 There comes, a cloudy scamping blade only do look there.

His flash to the cross roads and soon makes a Stand.
 Thro' Finchley up to London bearing loaded paps in hand.

~~... come to us in ...~~

Another

N^o 11

Oye ocampe, ye prads, ye dider, and all upon the lay,
 In Northill Shields Gay, shuch waltze, like lands ye sport and play,
 Whattling up your Dobbies, I am hither at your call,
 I am Jigger ~~not~~ here home and your welcome do Mull Doll
 with my few re row de doo. &c &c

At your insurance office, the Blads, your taken in,
 The game you played my kiddies, you always sure to win
 The time you found the spinnin the number up you break
 With your assurance policy, I'd not insure your neck
 with my — &c &c

N^o 12.

A very popular song was an account of a man
 picking up a woman and going home with her being well
 striped &c — I do not recollect the beginning.

Now to Temple Bar, I met a madam,
 She was dress'd so fine.
 She, asked me, to go with her,
 To drink a glass or two of wine —
 Up an alley we did sally —
 Merrily in a ker. did Bundle,
 There we had a pleasant shine.

Then follows a description of the place &c
 and then the cadence drops,

Was in the morning when I woke
 Oh, what a scene of misery shewn.
 The Dory gone and left me naked,
 Stripped off with all my clothes.
 Then I called, roared and bawled -
 Heard the raged Blunhut sound me
 In that plight thus home I go.

~~~~~  
 She told she, Heh'd, likewise she told me  
 Needs to make a pawn or swear.  
 Young men take warning, right and wrong,  
 Lest after me you go a Molling  
 Your the same sad fate may share.

N<sup>o</sup>. 13.

Another was a description of two poor <sup>women</sup> who had seen  
 Better days. It begins thus  
 Near to Temple Bar, lived two trading women  
 Jane, and Madam Cur, best in silow trimmings.  
 Those who who used to see, roaring sons of Thunder  
 Now they amaze the streets there for to ~~be~~ <sup>be</sup> ~~heard~~ <sup>heard</sup> ~~under~~.

Madam she kept Jenny for a waiting woman.  
 The remainder forgotten. Madam turned then  
 full of state, says. Gallants of the best come to us in Coaches

7.  
Mumch like squirrels drest in  
And as sound as swiches -  
Treat'ing us with wine  
For a little billing  
When we frudge the streets  
We're glad of half a shilling.

---

Winter is a coming, we must feed on *Spouts*  
Le Le

N<sup>o</sup> 14  
One which was made to the honour of some  
notorious thief, had these words, all I now remember.

"I furnish'd all my rooms, every one, every one.

I furnish'd all my rooms, every one.

I furnish'd all my rooms with, maps, brushes, and hair brooms  
Wash balls, and sweet Perfumes; them I stole, them I stole.

I sail'd up Holborn Hill in a cart, in a cart.

I sail'd up Holborn Hill in a cart

I sail'd up Holborn Hill, at St Giles's drunk my fill  
And at Shyburn made my will, in a cart, in a cart.

N<sup>o</sup>. 18.  
Morgan's Head and Darn

N<sup>o</sup>. 15  
Morgan Thattler

157

This song was sung in Clare Market, and at the Millbone  
End of Blount Market. I have long since forgotten the Words

N<sup>o</sup> 16  
A hole to put from Robin in.

One night as I came from the place  
I met a fair maid by the way  
~~She had a pleasant countenance and a droll expression~~  
She had my cheeks and a simpled chin  
And a hole to put from Robin in

—  
—  
—  
A bed and blanket I have got,  
A wash a kettle and a pot  
Beside a charming pretty thing  
A hole to put from Robin in.

some

and hair  
than I like

at

and my fall  
out, in a cart.



7.  
~~Dark & Gullaker.~~

N<sup>o</sup>. 17

Little red remembered

A pretty maid she to the miller would go  
Merry a soul so wantonly,

A pretty maid she, to the miller would go  
Whether her mother would let her or no

She says she'll have my corn ground small @ full price

When the miller he laid her against the mill horse

He pulled up her cloaths, and he put in the stopper <sup>Merry a soul &c</sup>  
<sub>The Miller he laid her</sub>

She says she'll have my corn ground &c

The miller he laid her against the mill sack

While the stones went click a te clack. <sup>Merry a soul &c</sup>  
<sub>The Miller he laid her</sub>

She says she, &c

Bonny Kate and Dary

A loving couple met one day, Bonny Kate and Dary  
~~Bonny Kate and Dary~~ both together to sport and play.

And so to pass the time away he showed her little Dary.

He took her to his father's barn Bonny Kate and Dary

He took her to his father's barn then he pulled out his long

And it was as long — as this my arm.

And he called it little Dary.

He took to the river side Bonny Kate and Dary

He took her to the river side and there he laid her legs <sup>wide</sup>

And on her belly he did ride.

And he whips it in little Dary.

He took her to — to several places —

When sixty weeks were come and gone Bonny Kate and Dary

When sixty weeks were come and gone — &c.

She was delivered of a son and she called it little Dary.

N<sup>o</sup> 19.  
The Rolling Kiddy 0

"A Youth comes up to town to learn our modern life  
No London town no better place to teach one from the country

~~A Greenhorn~~

A Greenhorn and his progress is  
described

"He learns to fight gets drunk a quarrel to begin  
and goes with the Gardner (Gardner) lad to every night  
bandy ken

~~is described in complete~~

Chorus

And this is the way to be a rolling kiddy 0.

The Whorem all admire him and say he is the

Rolling Kiddy 0.

N<sup>o</sup> 20

One pointing out many of the inconveniences  
of working and the dislike people have to work @ the  
advantages of <sup>the</sup> Thieving  
The church was

Then who would work and not go a thieving  
Then who would work @ not go a thieving.

1

A Kiddy boy from Broad St Giles no better than a wild Lamb.  
 Tho' he could mimic in the fields, a ruddy Goat, or Fox bark.  
 He sing'd a little curdy rogue his name was pretty Pumperny  
 And from a house an upstey dog than woid in search of Donkey

Was wou wou, sal de riddle ri du. ~~Wou~~

Was wou wou &c

He found one on the fallow land that now had been broke in  
 With rusty spur he mounted him, with which began to probe him  
 He held the buffer in one hand the other fear'd the donkey.

And Galliped off toward the farm with him and pretty Pumperny

Wotheration seize the Virgin pushing donkey

This mad friend savage full of spite full and his chin'd fork'd him  
 Tho' ~~was wou wou~~ <sup>that was his leg</sup> ~~hand~~ <sup>to the boy</sup> ~~at Kings~~

The bloody end with all his might about the head he brost him,

Then he round the eye again no matter who has sold thee  
 As he through the Village pass'd he cried, come up you bloody thief  
 do you think I stole ye

~~Was wou wou~~

Wotheration &c

4

He

5

He got a man to hold the beast while he run after Pumperny

The man not knowing in the heat the boy had bin the donkey

The curru came and knock'd him down

Wotheration seize the

the Kiddy boy & ~~Donkey~~ Pumperny

Tho' got the man so kick'd out for  
 study of the Donkey.

Wray: Hives, &c

deal the song - amidst roars of Laughter.

Sir John Fielding chief Magistrate at New Street  
was blind towards the latter end of his life.

A song was ~~made~~ which gave an account of a  
thief, whom he predicted would be ~~hanged~~ <sup>transported</sup> ~~sent~~ <sup>sent</sup> to the  
galleys.

"Why you lie, you old blind beggar I'll be  
back by Christmas day."

Says he, Mr. Mangarousi a fine fellow says

you are just fit to go to sea.

Why you lie you old blind beggar

I'll be back by Christmas day.



## Sandman Joe

The Ballad says as sung at the Amarcute Society - This was a <sup>club</sup> society held at the Crown and Anchor Tavern in the Strand, by Gentlemen.

4

Oh, the other day, as Sandman Joe,  
Up Holborn Hill was jogging,  
His raw boned Steer, it scarce could go,  
Not still the dog kept flogging,  
His raw boned Steer, scarce fit for the crowd,  
Just starved to death could scarce go.  
Whilst Gallows Joe his rump, he rubb'd  
and rearing cried, ~~Why hines you~~  
lilly, white sand. O. - Why  
hines, you Lilly, Lilly, Lilly,  
lilly, white sand. O.

Scarce far he'd gone to sell his sand  
Twas near a neighbouring alley  
When turning of his head about,  
He spied his flash girl Sally;  
His raw boned Steer, scarce fit for the crowd  
Could scarce stand, when he cried wo-o!  
Not to keep him up, his rump, he rubb'd  
and rearing cried, white  
sand. O. - Why &c

3

He stard awhile, then turn'd his quid,  
Why, blast you, Sall, I loves you!  
And in to prove what I have said,  
This night I'll soundly fuck you.  
Why then says Sall, my heart's at rest  
At what you say you'll stand to;  
His brawny hands, his bubblics prest  
and rearing cried, white sand. O  
Why - hines, &c &c

Said Sall to Joe, whine shall we go,  
Do get some gin to warm us?  
Why blast you to St Giles's prison,  
Then there the gin won't harm us,  
His raw boned Steer &c -

5

When to St Giles's they had got,  
They made themselves quite merry;  
They five times fill'd the quantum pot,  
With glorious gin so cherry  
His raw boned Steer &c

6

O then they kiss'd, and then shook fist,  
My dearest Joe I know you:  
As sound a dog as ever kiss'd  
This night I'll dofs with Joey,  
Then away they went so well content,  
No play the game you all know,  
While Gallows Joe he wag'd his  
arse, and rearing cried -  
white sand O. - Why ~~hines~~ hines  
you Lilly, Lilly, Lilly - li-li - li-li  
white - sand - Oh!

It was usually for a long time on  
Saturday nights - sung in an open space  
at the back of St Clement in the Strand &  
at the front an alcham door call'd  
the Crooked Willet. by two women who  
used to sham dying away as they con-  
clud the song - amidst roars of Laughter.

1. Hundreds — the wretched lands Laner and Allin in St Giles.
2. Miserable Maged Prostitutes.
3. Whit — Nathil Thiel's Prison
3. Darbis — Irons.
3. Mum Cull — those whom they robbed
4. Smacking — dividing — spending.
5. Nubbd — Manged
6. Duds — Cloaths.
7. Tedy — Work out.
8. Pub — Drink. Liquor
9. Twig — Ice
10. Nail — Spire. Not for bringing the liquor but because you are known — "want you".
11. Tipt — Game
12. Torum — Not — bowl —
13. Diddle — Munch — mist liquor — &c
14. Diving — Micking of Nochet.
15. Nubbing. Cull — Jack Thetch.
16. Nit — Gaol.
17. Turn brill — Cart.

N<sup>o</sup> 24.

To the Hundreds of Drury Turite,  
 and the rest of my fleshy companions,  
 To the buttocks<sup>1</sup> that pad it all night  
 To jimpes whores bursts and their stallions  
 To those that are down in the whit<sup>2</sup>  
 Muffling their darbies<sup>3</sup> with pleasure,  
 Who laugh at the rum<sup>3</sup> cults they've bit,  
 While here they are smacking<sup>4</sup> their treasure

2  
 This time I expect to be nubbd<sup>5</sup>  
 My duds<sup>6</sup> are grown wondrous ocdy<sup>7</sup>  
 I pray you now send me some bub<sup>8</sup>  
 A bottle or two, to the muddy  
 They you won't bring it yourself,  
 The hangin<sup>9</sup> is at the Old Mailay  
 I'd rather you'd send it by halt  
 For, if they twig<sup>9</sup> you, they'll nail you<sup>10</sup>

3  
 Mall Spriggins came here t'other night,  
 She lipid<sup>11</sup> us a jorum<sup>12</sup> of diddle<sup>13</sup>,  
 Gamish is the prison's delight,  
 We footed away to the fiddle,  
 Her fortune at diving<sup>14</sup>, did fail,  
 For which she has chang'd habitation  
 Now now the whore pads in the jail  
 And laughs at the fools of the nation.

4  
 This time I expect no reprieve,  
 The sheriffs come down with his warrants,  
 An account now behind us we leave  
 Of our friends, education and parades,  
 Our bolts are knock'd off in the whit,  
 Our friends to die penitent pray us,  
 The Nubling<sup>15</sup> call pops from the pit<sup>16</sup>  
 And into the tumbrel conveys us.



Through the streets as our wheels slowly move  
 The toll of the death bell disarms us,  
 With nosegays and gloves we are decked,  
 To trim and so gay they array us,  
 The pageant all crowded we see,  
 With maidens that move us with pity;  
 Our air all admiring, agree  
 Such cars are not left in the City.

6

Oh! then to the tree I must go,  
 The Judge he has order'd that sentence  
 And then comes a gentleman you know,  
 And tells a dull tale of repentance,  
 For the gullet were tied very tight,  
 We beg all spectators, pray for us,  
 Our peepers are hid from the light,  
 The drumbeats shew off, and we morrice.

## The Jolly Butcher.

There - of noble race was thinking  
6

1  
There was a Jolly Butcher.

He liv'd at Norton Fitzwarren.

He kept a stall, at Leadenhall  
And got drunk at the Day at Aldgate.

2

He run down Horns Ditch, reeling  
At Bedlam he was frighted,  
He in Moor fields, be hit his heels  
And at Hoxton he was wiped.

3

His mother she came to him,  
Who once liv'd down at Dover,  
She gave him a pint, of the best gin hot,  
And he spew'd her lap all over

4

His sweetheart next came to him,  
With a rolling eye so charming  
She was rugged and tough  
And lov'd, buckle-my-muff  
And would drink from night till morning

5

Her name it was Nell Larking  
And thus she said unto him  
If you'll go home Dick,  
I'll pay of your trick  
And save your soul from ruin.

Would you leave them with companions  
Bob Baker and Ned. Horden.

By your knife and your steel,  
You might live gentle  
And come to be Church Warden.

7

Consider dearest Dickey  
You've got a wealthy granum  
The man is sick - and will leave you Dick  
Near fifteen pound per annum.

8

Says Dick my sweetest creature,

Now I must go beyond sea,

Then give me, my girl

One pot of pearl,

And I'll love thee as long as I can see.

9

While thus they talk'd so clever,  
The constables came smack in,  
To the Widewell, in Clerkenwell  
They saw how Nelby packing.

10

And as for Dick the Butcher,  
Three Bailiffs took him napping,

No bail could he get

And he lies for debt

At a spunging house at Wapping

1  
 Drunk the other night as I need here to be, I met a young fellow just tum out of his kin,  
 She suddenly seiz'd me, and swore how she'd please me, if I would go with her & give her some gin,  
 Her cheeks, look'd so rosy, her eyes look'd so wanton, he waste so well shap'd & her lobbies so ripe,  
 But the gallant young huzzey while I felt her tizzy, was driven with her eyes to toward my wife.

2  
 I gave her stopper for making so bold, then the scots all came up being flush to the rig,  
 'Twas the noise of the rattle that made the whole prattle, so I shov'd him some cole to better his way.  
 The scots all came round me while I seem'd amazed, at last one among them he seiz'd me <sup>the</sup> wink,  
 It is one of our praddy, says he, and he's hearty, so we all bundlid in to a flush then to drink.

3  
 So do them a kindness it was my intension, to have a pull on them without more delay  
 So without further trouble I tip'd them the double, left the whole & the scots all the reeking to pay.

N<sup>o</sup> 27  
Brick Dust Nan.

M.T.

1  
 By the side of a green stagnant Pool, Brick Dust Nan, she stood scolding at her head,  
 Her matted locks all over her skull, like the bristles of the Hedge Hog were spread;  
 But the wind blew her tatters abroad, and her nose and brown beauties reveal'd,  
 When a linte boy, through the mud, bare-footed scamp'd over the field.  
 With, his lid, lod, lid, lod — &c

2  
 Oh! my dear tho' I can't so well draw, for the playing at the house ant' begun,  
 No tobacco ant' so sweet to my jaw, as a kiss from the lips of my Nan;  
 Thumping up to her straightway he gave her such a rill squeezing hugge  
 I could done in a doothore with thee, tho' bit by the blood sucking beegs.  
 With his lid lod — &c

3  
 A courting they sat in the rain for the space of a quarter of an hour,  
 When their wedding to keep in the day to a hog sty they instantly did occur;  
 Where the rats hungry round them explor'd, yet undauntedly they took their repose,  
 All night in the letter they dossed, and got up in the morning do loose.  
 With their lid, lod &c

N<sup>o</sup> 28. Teddy Blinck and Bandy Jack.

159

1  
On Sunday morning early we went to different chapels,  
My pal upon his bended knees the ladies yacks he grasps;  
"Lord grant that we may keep this law," and while she's upward looking,  
My pal so ready with his paw, her watch chain is unhooking.  
Hollol de riddle de — &c

2  
He dings it to his nearest pal, to brush directly after,  
The pretty, educated lad, sent, naps the newest caster;  
Then placed him in the nearest pew long side of feather gray locks,  
He brings the yellow bag to view the tooth pick case & snuff box.  
Hollol — &c

3  
Now some had lost their pretty rings, and some had lost their lockets,  
No rob in Church, Lord what a sin, cries Jane I've lost my pockets;  
Poor girl she'd hardly spoke the word when Susan came out bowling.  
Say she I've lost my black silk cloak, and several yards of muslin.  
Hollol — &c

4  
Now Teddy Blinck and Bandy Jack, they laid their heads together,  
If they could do the old codger in black, twoul give them mighty pleasure;  
He'd blast the congregation round and through, the crowd was puffing  
When Teddy drew aside his gown and Bandy spoke to the Parson.  
Hollol — &c

5  
They work'd the church of what would fence, which much alarmed the people  
For fear they should stone cates<sup>\*</sup> turn and brush away with the people.  
Hollol.

\* There was an exhibition at the time of a man who eat stones.

*[Faint, illegible handwriting throughout the page]*

Easter Monday - Monday was the great Market day for Cattle  
in Smithfield

Top - Cloaths

Blue Bird's eye - a silk handkerchief of a particular pattern.

Square - Throat - square because of the hornymen ropes

Gaiters below his knees - It was a fashion with Easter merris - Coal-heavers

Drovers and many others to wear breeches very short at the knees

they were always left unbuttoned and the string with which they

should be tied hung down - under the knees the stockings were

usually fastened with a broad red worsted garters. This mode

was considered very "knowing"

Blowen - prostitute - blades - idle foolish fellows

Hea - to hit.

Wash & stop - attitudes - of the dog when facing the Bull

His - legs -

Napt a taller - stole a watch -

Ding'd - ding is to throw - she gave it suddenly -

Pal - companion.

Cull - the man she had picked up

Long - knowing - in this case found out.

Wond - seized: what follows cannot be misunderstood.

Shad - ~~at~~ for another word used for sexual connection.

MMA - whine -

Wrinkle - picking pockets - Struckling a pick pocket.

Left - shop robbing - shop lifting.

Wads the roof - walks

Beaver Caster - Beaver hat - high curved beaver hats were worn by some

Indiaman - Mandana handkerchief.

Quar widges - long quartered - pointed shoes

Fit - fight - won.

With a cross - Cheat.

Broads - Cards

Pub - Liquor.

Tom the Drover <sup>N<sup>o</sup> 30.</sup> the Brindled Bull.

1  
It was on Easter Monday, spring time of the year,  
Molling Tom the Drover to Smithfield did repair;  
His dogs were tight and clever, his dog was staunch and free,  
With a blue birds eye round his Squeeze, and his garters below his knees.

2  
The blades of the Town were a looking to turn out a young Brindled Bull  
Turn him back, turn him back was the token, at his tail they began for to pull  
When a knowing young blowen from the garden happened by chance to come by  
Crying blast you why don't you hit him, you'll never turn a Bull without  
you try.

3  
Tom sold his quid, broke the fall, when the Bull gave the dog such a nip,  
Go you length my dear jewel for to wind him, to pin a Bull his never a life  
Strive to save his a dog will recover, back, and stop with the best in the field;  
And hell damn a his him firm so clever till he meets the young Brindled  
Bull do yield

4  
Sal Squinny to the right, nosh a tatter, and sing'd it to her pal so soon.  
Her Cull being leery he bound her before she got out of the room.  
When a row was kick'd up in a minute, a bottle at his head she did sling  
Crying blast your eyes you bugger, and down stairs she bundled him clean.

5  
Lick' May, she's a sawy blowen, and can pad with any Mott in the Town,  
At the Knuckle, or the left none so clever, tho she pads the hoof up and down;  
Tho she pads the hoof up and down, and with a beamer cartw she goes,  
With an India man about her squeeze, and he queer wedges down to her toes.

6  
I'm a lad that can tick with the querrit, pick a crop with pul for a mouse,  
Pick a Cuck, ~~pick~~ a Bull, bligh a Widgeon, ~~pick~~ a Sparrow, <sup>a mouse</sup> ~~pick~~ a cat jumps  
At the woods I can palm with the querrit, slip on a eed a duce or a tray.  
It was I bang'd the blades in the hollow, so come, all you jolly dogs come away.

7  
Come away to the sign of the Toper where Betsy the Bunter you'll see,  
She'll tick you a good rolling horripire, for she's one that's staunch and free  
She'll give you <sup>the</sup> ~~the~~ <sup>best</sup> of the rummest, if you'll give her plenty of beer,  
Come away to the sign of the Toper, where were all black, and free of the Club.

I think one verse is omitted -

N<sup>o</sup> 31.  
The Frolicsome Spark.

162

1  
A frolicsome spark to their sight, from a tavern came reeling out drunk,  
Here Watchman come tip us a light, for I'm for a saucy young punk;  
Old Gorge don't you think that I joke, come hither you Gallows old ram,  
Be civil and don't me provoke, here's a win for do buy you a dram.

2  
My load at the Mountain I got, my liquor was generous wine,  
Damn the dog that refuses a pot, or a bottle of liquor divine;  
I'm in snettle just right for some fun, and I dwell in the regions of love,  
Through streets, lanes, and alleys, I'll rove, in search of a girl for a shove.

3  
At length to a bawdy house come, don't think think that I trifle or jest,  
But bring me a flashy young piece, or blast me I'll kick up a dust;  
The bawd from a window look'd out, is it my house you mean for do rob,  
Be civil, and don't make a roat, or I've got one shall scuttle your mob.

4  
The blade much enraged at the throat, began for to storm and to swear,  
Why blast you I'll soon make you sweat, you bawdy-house keeping old mare;  
You Gallows old greasy used mule, I'm a lad that will never decamp,  
If I don't mill you glare damn my eyes, then smash with his stick at the lamp.

5  
No sooner this action was done, than murder and watch they were bawld  
Unbawld her windows he broke, and away to the watch-house was haul'd;  
When he tip'd them an ocean of swig, till came from each noddle was fled,  
Fast asleep left each drowsy old pig and bundled away to his bed.



N<sup>o</sup> 32 The Phlegm Pot.

163

A world of joys, it now completer, a winter frost and summer heat,  
With, kibeys heels or sweetly feet, but whoring brings the pox;  
Each such each blood, that shines so fine, each showing face or grave divine  
May brighter than the day light shine, yet have the same mischance.

2.

There's many a fine and flashy beau, that's taking pills for what you know.  
They are all beset from top to toe, tho' they strut St James's Mall;  
There's many a lady at Vauxhall, to go to stool must have a call,  
Thun up in a corner she lets it fall where it strikes as strong as Hell.

3

And when this way you have done your best, and your rotten curbs won't let you <sup>rest,</sup>  
At St Thomas's Hospital you are curst, where you spit the phlegm pot ore;  
And as the phlegm begins to rise, and the fever works out at your eyes  
And the death stool from your arse goes flie, Oh, then you feel no more.

1  
 As I was a driving my waggons one day,  
 I met a young maidens tight laced and gay  
 I kindly accosted her with a low bow.  
 And I felt my whole body I cannot tell how.

hee ho Dobbin — hee ho Dobbin

~~I long'd to~~

hee ho Dobbin — hee up hee ho

2

I long'd to be at her and give her help  
 She thought me <sup>but</sup> civil our talk in earnest  
 I know no recalling the minutes went fast  
 So us'd to make her happy while the sun shone bright

hee ho —

3

Wore made for each other I ~~was~~ with the company  
 She blus'd and commot'd she commot'd  
 She could not tell why. hee ho

4

Then down in the waggons this dinner I laid  
 Not still I kept driving for driving's my trade  
 As her buttocks went up her plump buttocks went down  
 And the wheels seem'd to stand and the Waggons go round hee ho

5

Then to and again to our partime we went  
 And I play'd my cards fairly to Jemmy's content  
 I rumpled her feathers I tickled her seat  
 And we play'd the mind rubbers as free hand a feat  
 Well not Mazer Well not Jemmy, Well not Mazer hee up hee ho

Pleas made at Westminster before the Right Honble Sir Robert Dallas Kn<sup>t</sup> and his  
Brethren Justices of His Majesty's Court of Common Bench of Hilary Term in the 2<sup>nd</sup> & 3<sup>rd</sup> Years  
of the Reign of our Sovereign Lord George the Fourth by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom  
of Gr<sup>t</sup> Brit<sup>n</sup> & Ireland King Defender of the Faith Roll 458

Middlesex

(to wit) William Turner was attacked to answer Joseph Phelps of a plea of trespass  
in the case & whereupon the s<sup>r</sup> Joseph by Rich<sup>d</sup> W<sup>m</sup> Hayward his attorney complains  
For that whereas one George Russell Phelps heretofore to wit on the 16<sup>th</sup> day of July in the  
year of our Lord 1821 at London to wit at Westminster in the County of Middlesex accord<sup>g</sup> to the  
usage & custom of merchants made his certain Bill of Exchange in writing bearing date the day  
& year afo<sup>r</sup> & then & there directed the s<sup>d</sup> Bill of Exchange to the s<sup>r</sup> W<sup>m</sup> & thereby then & there  
requested the said W<sup>m</sup> one month after <sup>the</sup> date thereof to pay to the order of the said Geo Russell  
Phelps £ 37. 10. 2 value rec<sup>d</sup> which s<sup>d</sup> Bill of Exchange he the s<sup>r</sup> W<sup>m</sup> refused to wit on the same  
day & year afo<sup>r</sup> at Westm<sup>r</sup> afo<sup>r</sup> in the County afo<sup>r</sup> according to the usage & custom of merchants upon  
sight thereof accepted and the s<sup>r</sup> G. R. Phelps to whose order the payment of the s<sup>d</sup> sum of  
money in the s<sup>d</sup> Bill of Exchange specified was to be made after the making of the said Bill  
of Exchange & before the paym<sup>t</sup> of the s<sup>d</sup> sum of money therein specified to wit on the same day  
& year afo<sup>r</sup> at Westminster afo<sup>r</sup> in the County afo<sup>r</sup> accord<sup>g</sup> to the s<sup>d</sup> usage & custom of merchants  
indorsed the s<sup>d</sup> Bill of Exchange by which s<sup>d</sup> indorsement he the s<sup>r</sup> G. R. Phelps then & there  
ordered & appointed the said sum of money in the said Bill of Exchange specified to be paid to the

M<sup>r</sup> Hayward's Account.

N<sup>o</sup>. 34



(1)

Until the subject was mentioned to me by T. P. it did not occur to me  
that the change in the manners of the lower orders had been so great  
as it really is, since my boyhood - say from 1750 to 1792 - the period  
of the breaking out of the French Revolution & the institution of the Sunday  
schools - and not only of the lower orders, but the middling classes also  
There ~~was~~ <sup>were</sup> for Masters Tradesmen the Dog & Duck - the Temple of Flora  
The Apollo Gardens several other Tea Gardens & Bowling greens Bagniffe  
Wells for all sorts - The Bull in the Pound - Merlin's Cave The  
Green Lion de for whores & request of all denominations not forgetting the  
Cock & Hen clubs - Cutler Cards & flash offany men with the peculiar  
dresses - rollers at the checker striped silk stockings - numerous knee  
strings long quartered shoes & all en suite. But the great change is  
in the obscene ballads sung in praise of the King which were the  
only ones sung about the streets - I'll try to recollect a few  
words & ends ~~of them~~ a boy used to get a great collection of several  
maids & other listeners on market nights in the vicinity of Clare market  
& get a great many half pence by singing the most bawdy ditties such as

First he niggled her, then he, tiggled her  
Then with his two balls he began for to batter her  
At every thrust, I thought she'd have burst  
With the terrible size of his Morgan Rattler  
A sort of Parody on this had an immense run for a long time  
It began

Great boasting of late I've heard of a feat  
Of a terrible rake called Morgan Rattler  
But there's one come to town will soon cut him down  
And he goes by the name of ~~George~~ <sup>Young</sup> Darby O'follickes  
Of his young handsome blade is a blacksmith by trade  
And well known by the ladies to be a great pollickes  
The Ladies all cry as they see him pass by  
There goes the bold Hammerman Darby O'follickes  
At Mullin's Fair, <sup>this</sup> young <sup>Darby</sup> ~~blade~~ was there  
With Nancy, <sup>that</sup> sweet pretty pollickes  
For soon she did please for the ~~travellers~~ <sup>travellers</sup> wedge  
That was drove by the sledge of young Darby O'follickes  
It was very long & concluded thus

So now to conclude pray don't think me rude  
Since I've sung you a song of this bold <sup>young</sup> pollickes  
Ah! Ho! Morgan may stop there's the boy that can  
Fall twelve thirteens off with his Darby O'follickes

Our Lord the King hath sent to his right trusty & well beloved Sir Rob<sup>t</sup>  
Dallas Knight his Chief Justice of the Bench here his writ closed in these words George  
the Fourth by the grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Brit<sup>ain</sup> & Ireland King  
Defender of the Faith To our right trusty & well beloved Sir Rob<sup>t</sup> Dallas Knight our Chief Justice  
of the Bench greeting For as much as in the Record and Proceps as also in giving the Judgment  
in a Pleint which was in our Court before you and your Associates our Justices of the  
Bench by our writ between Joseph Phelps and William Turner of a plea of trespass upon  
the case upon premises as it is said manifest error hath intervened to the great damage  
of the said William as by his complaint we are informed We willing that the said error  
(if any be) be duly amended & full & speedy Justice done to the said Parties in this behalf  
Do command you that if Judgment be given thereupon then you send to us distinctly & plainly  
~~under your seal the Record and Proceps of the said Pleint with all things touching the same~~  
and this writ so that we may have them In fifteen days of Easter wheresoever we shall then  
be in England that inspecting the Record & Proceps a<sup>l</sup>s<sup>o</sup> we may cause further to be done thereupon  
for amending the said Error as of right and according to the law and custom of England shall  
be meet to be done Witness ourself at Westm<sup>ster</sup> the twelfth day of February in the third year of our  
Reign



The answer of Sir Robert Dallas Knight Chief Justice within named  
The Record & Proceps of the Pleint within ment<sup>d</sup> with all things touching the same  
I send before my Lord the Lord Chanc<sup>er</sup> on the 14<sup>th</sup> day within commanded in a certain

Another ran thus

As I was a coming from the play  
I met a fair maid by the way  
She had rosy cheeks & a dimpled  
with a hole for to put poor Robin <sup>chin</sup> in

I had a blanket I have got  
a sick a spoon a Kettle & a St.  
Pendora charming pretty thing  
That's a hole for to put poor  
Robin in

Another called the female  
a slanders

To batter the town the general <sup>comes</sup>  
And brings along with him his  
Cannon & Bombs  
But with Bag the <sup>sub</sup> baggage  
away he steers  
dead beat by us female Volunteers

Another descriptive of an old man  
killed with a cough who could not  
enjoy his wife Ran

For tho' he lays by me for  
years can enjoy me  
For all the night long he is  
killed with a cough  
after entering fully into  
particulars it concluded

I'll have a look out for some  
lusty young fellow  
who's able to give me some  
reason to laugh

And when I have met with  
this lusty young fellow  
I'll pitch to the Devil  
both him & his cough

There was another about tying  
a mouse to a man's yard which  
had no erection & letting a cat  
into the room to run away with  
both

Another called Taculum Too  
descriptive of female parts ran  
Its rough & hairy skinning too  
I go by the name of a Taculum <sup>Too</sup>

& celebratory descriptive of  
Copulation on a cobbler's stall  
ended

The Cobler hearing of a riot  
This a Brevice poked his awl  
He pricked the lady in the <sup>side</sup>  
He threw the rider off the <sup>stall</sup>

They were chiefly descriptive of  
Copulation a great favourite  
ended in chorus

Sal de riddle de and the Hummer  
went quick knock

Sally Mc Fee gave an account  
of his posing different tradesmen  
de - the lawyer ran thus  
I worked his quill with the  
coal of curiosity - Ran sharp  
to your doctor says Sally Mc Fee

Another about trades ran  
But I'd have the young women  
beware of their steel  
If they blow up their wives as  
they blow up their keel

Some say that a Sailor (my  
husband) shall be  
But a Sailor good Lord why  
leave me for me  
For his nose & his arse  
so near they do meet  
That I think that his breath  
can hardly be met

In short tho' there were a great number of songs &  
called songs they were invariably bawdy or what was  
termed flash (no others were circulated in that manner)  
The flash songs were openly in praise of thieving  
as

Come all you roving blades who in thieving  
take delight

with your paps in your pockets & your  
cutlapp in your hand

Ride boldly to the diligence & bid the bygers  
stand

The exploits of Teddy Blink & Bandy Jack in  
thieving in a church had a great run

The Rolling Riddle was a great favourite the  
chorus was

This is the way to be a Rolling Riddle O

The blowings will admire you & swear you are  
the Tippy O

Flarriss's List of bovent fardes Ladies with their prices was  
publicly placarded & sold by booksellers who were thought  
decent - Bawdy books were publicly put out on  
stalls

'55 Geo. III. Cap. 184."  
**STAMP DUTIES,**  
 1815.

Schedule Part 1.

**WARRANT for Certificates for Attornies,  
 Solicitors, Proctors, Notaries, and Sworn  
 Clerks or Clerks in Court.**

Name and Residence of  
 the Person applying for  
 Certificates.—and Date.

day of

182 .

**GENERAL DIRECTIONS TO PERSONS APPLYING FOR CERTIFICATES.**

*N. B. After payment of the Duty in the Receiver General's Office, this Warrant must be entered in the Office of the Comptroller, and be then delivered to the Distributer of the Certificates, as his Authority for issuing the same, together with a Note or Ticket, properly filled up, with the Name and Place of Residence of each Person, for whom a Certificate is required, and stating whether he has been admitted three years or not. This Warrant must be entered, separately, in the Offices above-mentioned, no Discount being allowed on this Duty.*



The number of  
 Certificates to be  
 written in words  
 at length.

Certificate to be taken out yearly, by every Person admitted an Attorney or Solicitor, in any Court in England or Wales, or a Proctor in any Ecclesiastical or Admiralty Court, or a Notary Public; and also by every Sworn Clerk, Clerk in Court, or other Clerk or Officer in any Court, who shall commence or defend any Action or Suit or do any Notarial Act, for Gain or Reward, as an Attorney, Solicitor, Proctor, or Notary Public, although not admitted or enrolled as such;

If he shall reside in London or Westminster, or within the limits of the *Two-penny Post*,

And if he shall have been admitted, or been in possession of his Office, for three years or upwards.....

Or if he shall not have been admitted or been in possession so long .....

| Duty. | Amount.  |
|-------|----------|
| £.    | £. s. d. |
| 12    |          |
| 6     |          |

12

6

*Mr. Hayward's account*

*Mr. Hayward's account*



so long  
6